
 
 

 

 To: Councillor Crockett Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Dickson, 
Jackie Dunbar, Forsyth, Laing, McCaig, Malone, May, Noble, Taylor and Young. 
 
Members are reminded that substitutes are permissible and should be used if 
necessary. 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN, 26 July 2012 

 
URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

 
 The Members of the URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE are requested to meet in 
Committee Room 2 - Town House on FRIDAY, 27 JULY 2012 at 10.00am. 
 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Members are requested to resolve that any exempt business on this agenda be 
considered with the press and public excluded   
 

2 Mitchell's Hospital Trust - Report by Chief Executive  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

3 Virement of Budget to Establish Posts in Integrated Care at Home - Report by 
Director of Social Care and Wellbeing  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 BUSINESS THE COMMITTEE MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE 
 

4 Staff for In House Learning Disability Service - Report by Director of Social Care 
and Wellbeing  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn 
Orchard 01224 523097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Urgent Business Committee   
 
DATE      27 July 2012    
 
LEAD OFFICER   Chief Executive      
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Mitchell’s Hospital Trust    
 
REPORT NUMBER:       OCE/12/013 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The report requests the Committee to agree the appointment of two 
Council representatives to join the Mitchell’s Hospital Trust which next 
meets on Tuesday 31 July 2012. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Committee agrees the appointment of two Council 
representatives to join the Mitchell’s Hospital Trust.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The report has no financial implications. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications to the report 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Established through deed of mortification registered on 25 May 1801, 
the Mitchell’s Hospital Trust was set up by David Mitchell of Holloway 
Down, Essex “to provide lodging, maintenance and clothing for a few 
aged widows and maiden daughters of decayed gentlemen, or 
merchants, or trade burgesses of Old Aberdeen”.  The hospital to 
house those women supported by the Trust was built on a piece of 
ground on the Chanonry gifted by the Provost, Magistrates and Council 
of Old Aberdeen. 
 
The Trust continues to operate and has been a registered charity 
(SC012723) since 1 August 1923 following the agreement of a scheme 
for the administration of the hospital. 
 
While the Council has no record of any previous involvement with the 
Trust, the Principal of Aberdeen University has approached the Chief 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Executive and drawn her attention to the fact that the trustees 
responsible for managing the affairs of the Mitchell’s Hospital include 
“two persons of either sex to be nominated by the Town Council of 
Aberdeen for a period of five years, such persons being if possible 
interested in and acquainted with Old Aberdeen”. 
 
Other trustees include the Principal of the University of Aberdeen 
(chairman), the Professor of Divinity of the University of Aberdeen, the 
Ministers of the First and the Second Charges of the Parish of Old 
Machar and the Convener of the Incorporated Trades of Old Aberdeen. 
 
The Trust has a pressing requirement to meet to discuss the future of 
its work and as such a meeting of the trustees has been called for 
Tuesday 31 July 2012.  Given this, there is an urgent need for the 
Council to appoint two representatives. 
 
The Committee’s agreement to this is sought so that the names of the 
two elected members can be passed to the University immediately 
following the end of the meeting on 27 July. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Representation on outside bodies assists the Council in fulfilling its role 
in delivering the Single Outcome Agreement. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Ciaran Monaghan 
Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive 
cmonaghan@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
01224 (52) 2293 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE           Urgent Business Committee    
 
DATE    27 July 2012  
 
DIRECTOR   Fred McBride   
 
TITLE OF REPORT Virement of budget to establish posts in Integrated Care 

at Home  
 
REPORT NUMBER:        
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of the report is to seek approval for virement of budget to 
allow the permanent establishment of up to 35fte Personal Carers 
(G09) and 3fte Team Leaders (G12) within the Integrated Care at 
Home service, within current budget.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
It is recommended that Urgent Business Committee: 
 
(i) agrees to the virement of £1m from the current commissioning 
budget for purchase of care home places to the Integrated Care at 
Home service to increase the staffing establishment; 
 
(ii) agrees to the establishment of permanent posts in Integrated Care 
at Home � 35fte personal carers and 3fte team leaders.  

 

3. FINANCIAL & STAFFING IMPLICATIONS  
 

3.1     There are no immediate financial implications for the Social Care & 
Wellbeing 

 budget as the costs of the proposed posts are to be met within the 
current budget for Older People and Rehabilitation.  

 
3.2 The proposal is for the virement of the current care management 

budgets for the purchase of residential and nursing home care to 
create a salary budget for in-house Service provision.  The virement for 
2012/13 would equate to approximately £605,000 which the Director for 
Social Care and Wellbeing can confirm will be contained within the 
overall budget for the Service which is £122 million.  

 
3.3 To meet the current and growing demand for care at home, the 

proposal is to increase the establishment of personal carers in 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



Integrated Care at Home service by redirecting resources from spend 
on care home places. 

 
3.4 Virement of £605,000 to the care at home budget will allow the 

provision of an additional 1,100 hours of personal care per week by 
35fte personal carers supported by three team leaders. The full year 
costs will also be contained within the overall Social Care and 
Wellbeing provisional budget for 2013/14 and the subsequent 5 Year 
business plan.  

 
3.5 The budget implications are:  
 
Impact on current year�s revenue budget * 
 
Proposal will cost £604,899 - £681,929 for the remainder of the current 

year 
 
Job Title Grade FTE Basic Min Basic Max Min + OCs Max + OC 
Personal Carer G09 35 £414,820 £466,900 £538,022 £605,569 
Team Leader G12 3 £51,563 £58,874 £66,877 £76,360 

Totals 
 

£466,383 £525,774 £604,899 £681,929 

*For the purposes of this report, it is assumed that appointments are made 
from 1 August 2012. 
On-Costs are calculated at the rate of 29.7% 
 

Full year impact on revenue budget: 
 
Proposal will cost £699,575 - £1,022,894 for a full year (most 

appointments will be at minimum cost, point 1 on scale) 
 
Job Title Grade FTE Basic Min Basic Max Min + OCs Max + OC 
Personal Carer G09 35 £622,230 £700,350 £807,033 £908,354 
Team Leader G12 3 £77,345 £88,312 £100,316 £114,540 

Totals 
 

£699,575 £788,662 £907,349 £1,0A22,8
94 

On-Costs are calculated at the rate of 29.7% 
 

4.         OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There is an increasing demand for care at home, from a continuing 

shift from care homes to care in people�s own home, and from 
increasing numbers of older people with complex care needs requiring 
a service.  

 
4.2 This report is a matter of urgency as there are presently 56 older 

people with a high level of need waiting for care at home and at least 
16 of these have complex and urgent needs.  This is an 

Page 4



unprecedented situation. The lack of care is increasing the risk of 
harm and further loss of independence and of emergency admission 
to hospital or a care a home, and is putting a strain on family carers.  
The additional availability of 1,100 hours of care would allow people 
who are waiting to receive up to 20 hours a week of personal care.  

 
4.3 The private sector care at home agencies are unable to meet all the 

current demand for care and our Integrated Care at Home service is 
working at more than maximum capacity to meet demand.  To meet 
some of the shortfall, we have asked other staff, e.g. care managers 
and OTs if they are willing to do additional work as personal carers, 
with a few coming forward.  Because of European Working Time 
Directive and the demands of their substantive posts, this 
arrangement can only be short term.  

 
4.4   The service is recruiting soon to vacant personal carer posts within 

current establishment and would like to take the opportunity to recruit 
to additional posts to relieve the problem of lack of care 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The primary remit of the Integrated Care at Home service is to provide 

personal care and housing support to people in very/sheltered housing.  
The service also provides most of the out of hours and overnight care 
and personal care to around 150 people with more complex needs in 
the community.   This represents about 25% of the home care funded 
by the Council in the City.  

 
5.2 Most home care, around 75%, is purchased from private care at home 

providers.  Over some months, the private providers have been 
increasingly unable to meet the demand from the Council for purchase 
of home care.  At times the private sector is unable/unwilling to take on 
the more complex cases.   

 
5.3 The private care providers have reported difficulty in recruiting staff. 

The problem has been exacerbated in the last few weeks with the 
introduction across the City of an Electronic Monitoring System to log 
time spent in the service user�s home and the loss of staff across 
several providers as a result of this (there being an impact on some 
people�s earnings).  

 
5.4 As the provider of last resort, it falls to the Integrated Care at Home 

service to try to meet any shortfall in home care. With increasing 
demand, this is no longer achievable within the current establishment 
of personal carers in Integrated Care at Home.  

 

Page 5



6. IMPACT 
 

The proposal supports the Council�s commitment to the Single 
Outcome Agreement: 

 National Outcome 6 � We live longer, healthier lives; and 
 Aberdeen City�s Local outcome - to improve people�s health and well 

being 
 promote inclusion and independence. 
 

7.       HR/FINANCE COMMENT 
 

7.1     HR has provided comment and is satisfied with the proposals for 
staffing in the Report.   
The proposed jobs have been evaluated using council�s agreed JE 
Scheme as G09 & G12. 

 

8.     REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Liz Taylor 
 Head of Service, Older People & Rehabilitation 
 litaylor@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 O1224 522457 
 

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Page 7

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 3 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Mitchell's Hospital Trust - Report by Chief Executive
	3 Virement of Budget to Establish Posts in Integrated Care at Home - Report by Director of Social Care and Wellbeing
	4 Staff for In House Learning Disability Service - Report by Director of Social Care and Wellbeing

